
September 4, 2018COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

BELLEVUE ARTS COMMISSION



“The arts are an important expression of how people think of and experience the city and 
each other. Bellevue seeks to foster a strong arts and cultural community chiefly supported 
through a wide range of artists, art and cultural institutions, and arts groups offering a variety 
experiences to an engaged audience.”

-City of Bellevue, Comprehensive Plan, Urban Design & the Arts Element



Ag
en

da



 
Tuesday, September 4, 2018 

 
Bellevue Arts Commission 

Meeting:  4:30 p.m.  
Bellevue City Hall, 1E-109 Commission Staff Contact:  425.452.4105 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 4:30  

Chair Manfredi will call the meeting to order. 
 
2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES  4:30 – 4:35 
  A. Chair Manfredi will ask for approval of the agenda. 
  B. Chair Manfredi will ask for approval of the February 2018 regular meeting 

minutes. 
 
3.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS    4:35 – 4:40 
  Chair Manfredi will entertain oral communications limited to three minutes per 

person or five minutes if representing the official position of a recognized community 
organization for other than main agenda items and public hearing subject. A 
maximum of three people are permitted to speak to each side of any one topic.  

 
4.  ACTION ITEMS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS  

A. StART East Link Light Rail Art Presentation 4:40 – 5:00 
B. 2018 Bellwether Program Update 5:10 – 5:20 
C. King County 4Culture Cultural Health Study 5:20 – 5:30 

 
5.  COMMISSION QUICK BUSINESS   5:30 – 5:35 
 
6. REPORTS          5:35 – 5:45  

A. Commissioners’ Committee and Lead Reports    
  B. Project Updates from Staff    
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE, INFORMATION   5:45– 5:50  

A. Written correspondence (if any) 
B. Information 

i. Committees 
  

8.  ADJOURNMENT       5:50 
  Chair Manfredi will adjourn the meeting. 
 
Bellevue Arts Commission meetings are wheelchair accessible.  Captioning, American Sign Language 
(ASL), or language interpreters are available upon request.  Please phone at least 48 hours in advance 
425-452-6168 (VOICE) for ADA accommodations. If you are deaf or hard of hearing, dial 711 (TR). Assisted 
listening devices are available upon request. Please contact the Arts Program at least two days in advance 
jheim@bellevuewa.gov  ▪ 425-452-4105 (Voice) ▪ Please dial 711 for assistance for the hearing impaired. 
 
  

A g e n d a    

mailto:jheim@bellevuewa.gov


ARTS COMMISSION MEMBERS 
Paul Manfredi, Chair 
Philip Malkin, Vice Chair 
Ashmita Gulati 
Trudi Jackson 
Maria Lau Hui 
Rebecca Lewis 
Carl Wolfteich 
 
COUNCIL LIAISON 
John Stokes 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Joshua Heim, Arts Program Manager, 425-452-4105 
Scott MacDonald, Arts Program Coordinator, 425-452-4852 
 
 



M
in

ut
es



Bellevue Arts Commission  
July 10, 2018 Page  1 

 

BELLEVUE ARTS COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

July 10, 2018  Bellevue City Hall 
4:30 p.m. Room 1E -118 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Manfredi, Commissioners Gulati, Jackson, 

Lau Hui, Lewis, Malkin 
 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Commissioner Wolfteich  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Joshua Heim, Scott MacDonald, Department of Planning 

and Community Development 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Councilmember Stokes  
 
RECORDING SECRETARY: Gerry Lindsay 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:32 p.m. by Chairperson Manfredi who presided. All 
Commissioners were present with the exception of Commissioner Gulati, who arrived at 4:40 
p.m., and Commissioner Wolfteich, who was excused.  
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES 
 
 A. Approval of Agenda  
 
Motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner Lewis. The motion was 
seconded was by Commissioner Malkin and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 B. Approval of Minutes 
 
Motion to approve the June 5, 2018, minutes as submitted was made by Commissioner 
Malkin. The motion was seconded was by Commissioner Lewis and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
4. ACTION ITEMS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 A. 2018 Bellwether Program Update 
 
Mr. Ben Beres with BeresSuttonCuller reported that there were 54 confirmed artists, including 
some poetry readings and some music. He noted the September 14 opening night celebration 
will be at the Bellevue Arts Museum. There will be two Saturdays during the exhibition; 
during the first one there will be events at Compass Plaza, and during the second there will be 
events at Downtown Park. The entire second floor of the Bellevue Arts Museum will house 
works from the exhibition, and works will be sited at City Hall as well. He said the music and 
poetry performers are still being identified.  
 



Mr. Beres along with John Sutton with BeresSuttonCuller reviewed with the Commissioners 
the artists who will be involved, shared examples of their work, and indicated where they will 
be displayed. Mr. Beres said on the two Saturdays people will be hired to wear spinning 
arrows intended to point out things, including performances. He noted that several of the 
works will be interactive.  
 
Commissioner Malkin asked if QR codes will be utilized to help inform the audience. Mr. 
Beres said the marketing piece has not been fully fleshed out yet.  
 
Commissioner Malkin asked if there will be performances or live events at the Bellevue Arts 
Museum. Mr. Sutton said there will be, including both music and poetry readings. Details 
about scheduling and access are still being worked out.  
 
Commissioner Jackson asked how the overall budget was working out compared to previous 
year Bellwether exhibitions. Arts Program Coordinator Scott MacDonald said the previous 
total project budget was $270,000, about $50,000 of which went for the installation contract. 
Funds were also expended for permitting and advertising, which left about $65,000 that went 
to the artists. The current budget is between $95,000 and $100,000, with less to be spent on 
installations and more on artists. Additionally, many of the works will have longer lives than 
in the past.  
 
Commissioner Jackson asked about the mural to be located in the Bellevue Arts Museum 
parking garage, noting that the driveway is narrow and the lighting in the garage is not all that 
good. Mr. Sutton said there are stairways and elevators that serve the garage. The team will 
work with the Bellevue Arts Museum to post information about the work, which will also be 
highlighted on the Bellwether map.  
 
Commissioner Lau Hui suggested that people should be discouraged from walking down the 
driveway. Mr. Sutton agreed pedestrian access only signs may need to be posted.  
 
Commissioner Malkin commented that the staircase leading down to the garage could be 
another opportunity for illustration. Mr. MacDonald said that was a good point. Mr. Sutton 
added that a similar conversation was held with the Meydenbauer Center about their garage 
space in regard to the Grand Connection. They love the idea but the focus during the 
exhibition will be more narrowly focused.  
 
Commissioner Malkin asked if the $5000 in the budget for photography and video was 
enough to adequately document all that will be going on. Arts Program Manager Joshua Heim 
said that issue will need to be addressed. He allowed that there is an intent to document 
everything. Mr. Sutton said ideally all the documentation videos and photos will ultimately be 
posted to the city’s website.  
 
Chair Manfredi said the new format is a major transition away from what Bellwether has been 
in the past. It addresses the concerns, interests and the aspirations of the Commission and 
others to bolster the city’s creative assets. He said he was heartened to see the enthusiastic 
responses from artists.  
 
Mr. Heim said he has been working with the city’s economic development staff who have 
helped to secure a $20,000 grant to be used for marketing to tourists. He said a graphic 
designer has been hired to develop the advertisements, the maps, the brochures and the 
posters. He shared with the Commissioners three brand concepts. The first option, “Conceal 
and Reveal,” included a color pallet of gray and orange and incorporated overlapping planes 
represent different creative disciplines.  
 



Bellevue Arts Commission  
July 10, 2018 Page  3 

 

Commissioner Jackson suggested that gray and orange is overdone.  
 
Answering a question asked by Commissioner Gulati, Mr. Heim said within the scope of the 
work for the graphic designer, he will work to develop posters, maps, postcards, email flyers 
and social media banners. There will also be a website.  
 
Commissioner Malkin asked if the branding effort will be tied to the current Bellwether only 
or subsequent Bellwether exhibitions. Mr. Sutton said it is intended to brand the event, 
particularly in typeset and look. The colors may change over time. Mr. Heim added that the 
branding exercise is intended to get an image stuck in the minds of the public that is tied to the 
event. Conceal and Reveal would be the concept behind everything moving forward.  
 
Chair Manfredi said he liked the Conceal and Reveal idea. He called it intriguing, stimulating 
and hightech-esque, but said it did feel a bit corporate. 
 
Mr. Beres said the “be” and “we” stuck out to him. He agreed it felt a bit corporate but said it 
also has an element of class that the other two options do not have.  
 
Commissioner Gulati said if a Bellwether brand is going to be created and used in the coming 
years, the focus should be on giving a glimpse of the event so people can know what it 
references. She said she liked the idea of changing shapes and colors year by year, but the 
core branding graphics should not change over time. More money will need to be spent in the 
early years to gain brand recognition and connection.  
 
Mr. Heim said Concept B was titled “Stagger and Reach.” He noted that it was inspired by 
real brands and focused on referencing the idea of connections and boundary crossing.  
 
Commissioner Jackson said Concept B appeared to be more family friendly. It makes it clear 
the focus is on people from downtown Bellevue along with attendees from businesses. 
Intellectually there is a question about whether or not Bellwether should be split into two 
words. She suggested that even among native English speakers, the majority likely do not 
know what “bellwether” means and may think the word has been misspelled when seen as a 
separate word.  
 
Mr. Sutton said he liked the green and blue colors, though he said there was something very 
Seattle about them.  
 
Chair Manfredi said he liked the lines and the way they ran off the image.  
 
Mr. Heim noted that Concept C was titled “Patterned Infills.” In it the graphic artist used 
different patterns to reference the different types of genres and programming found in 
Bellwether.  
 
Commissioner Gulati suggested Concept C could play well over the years. The patterns and 
colors could change while retaining the main graphic of the circle and the B without having it 
get old.  
 
Commissioner Lau Hui said she found it to be somewhat busy. She allowed that it is very kid 
friendly. 
 
Mr. Beres agreed the B in the circle log could be timeless, but he said overall it felt a little 
kitschy or 1997 to him.  
 



Commissioner Jackson agreed and said it felt somewhat quilty to her. While that may be cozy 
and friendly to some, for others it may not work. Mr. Sutton allowed that the arts and crafts 
look and feel may play more into the annual arts fairs. He suggested it would be better to use a 
design that makes Bellwether stand on its own. He said he saw good elements in each concept 
but felt that somehow no one of them was quite right. Commissioner Jackson said she was 
thrilled to see three such different concepts.  
 
Mr. Heim said he would share the feedback with the graphic artist and have him make some 
revisions.  
 
Mr. Heim also informed the Commissioners that a public art intern has been hired to help out 
during the time Mr. MacDonald will be on parental leave. If all goes well, she will stay on 
through the fall and potentially into the winter to assist with general public art program issues. 
She is a graduate student in urban planning and she just finished an internship at Urban 
Artworks, the youth mural program in Seattle.  
 
Mr. Heim said the marketing coordinator who has been hired will addressing public relations, 
social media strategy and paid advertising strategy. He said in the past there has been no focus 
on enabling participating artists to be brand ambassadors and to activate their networks. Part 
of the scope written in for the marketing coordinator is to come up with an artist outreach 
toolkit and to work with every single artist with a focus on advancing Bellwether. An 
unsolicited proposal has been received from the Bellevue Downtown Association around 
marketing as well which will add to the overall impact through outreach to people who live in 
downtown Bellevue and to those who work at Bellevue Square.  
 
 B. 2019 Bellwether Program Discussion 
 
Mr. Heim said the thinking is that by the time the current Bellwether event wraps up, the 
curator for the 2019 Bellwether event should be on board. He said time will be taken to 
review the lessons learned, both what went well and what did not go so well.  
 
Mr. Heim reminded the Commissioners that the Bellwether exhibition has been themed since 
2010. He distributed a handout listing all of the themes chosen over the years along with a 
blurb about each. The first theme was focused on sustainability and every year since the 
theme has been a play on the original theme.  
 
Mr. Heim from the Commissioners potential themes around which to organize the 2019 event 
and offered several suggestions, beginning with the idea of a new city monument. He noted 
that a couple of years ago Philadelphia ran a program called Monument Lab that was an 
outgrowth of a university class in which a professor and his students researched the untold 
story of the city of Philadelphia. That pivoted in 2017 to a program of art making. A total of 
20 temporary monuments were commissioned throughout the city. The take locally is that 
Bellevue is a fairly new city. There are officially monuments or memorials in the city: the elm 
trees in Downtown Park which is a WWI memorial; there is a WWII memorial in Downtown 
Park as well, the Belvedere Fountain; Guanyin, which was given to the city as a gift following 
9-11; and the statue of Gandhi, which was a gift from the government of India. None of the 
works memorialize something that occurred in Bellevue. The idea is to organize a Bellwether 
around what has happened in Bellevue that should be memorialized.  
 
Commissioner Jackson asked if the notion is to change the tenor of Bellwether by focusing on 
new city monuments. Mr. Heim said the theme for the 2018 Bellwether is Connections, which 
was predicated on the notion of the Grand Connection art and culture master plan. A great 
deal of exploration has gone into what the space should be in the future, and Bellwether is 
intended to serve as an expression of what a cultural corridor should look like.  



Bellevue Arts Commission  
July 10, 2018 Page  5 

 

 
Mr. Sutton said the perspective of BeresSuttonCuller has been on making Bellwether an 
annual event curated each time with different themes that build on the previous theme. He 
said it felt a bit off to him to try coming up with a theme for 2019 before the 2018 iteration 
has even happened. He allowed that it would be good to begin thinking about the type of 
curator to bring on board, someone who could look at what is happening currently and what 
will be happening with the Grand Connection in the future. Ultimately, Bellwether should 
push the Grand Connection and that things that are happening that still need to happen to 
make that plan come to life. The monument idea, while a good idea, does not seem to fit in 
with the Grand Connection theme.  
 
Commissioner Malkin asked how much of the Grand Connection will be developed by the 
time of the 2019 Bellwether. Mr. Heim said the intersection adjacent to Compass Plaza will be 
built by then. The Grand Connection itself is programmatic and will come online over a 
period of time. The idea of a cultural plinth was a big piece of the Grand Connection and 
Bellwether, and what will be needed is a curator to come in and advise in regard to what 
should be honored and put on the cultural plinths. There really are no curators who are 
generalists; curators are sought out because of their particular expertise.  
 
Chair Manfredi shared the concern voiced by Mr. Sutton. He said the monuments idea could 
diminish the breadth of the general Grand Connection theme. He allowed that the focus could 
move things in a substantive direction, which would not necessarily be a bad thing.  
 
Commissioner Jackson said the last theme was very specific in calling for the creation of a 
series of pop-up, immersive cultural bazaars and experiences celebrating Bellevue’s diverse 
population groups. She said she was having trouble in her mind reconciling the old Bellevue 
Sculpture Exhibition and the Bellwether approach with its sense of movement along a corridor 
with the very specific monuments proposal.  
 
Mr. Heim asked what the Commissioners would like to see a curator contemplate and develop 
an artist roster around. Commissioner Malkin said he liked the notion of visioning the future 
of the Grand Connection and its potential. The future will not yet been reached in 2019 but the 
visioning of the potential should be continued.  
 
Mr. Sutton said he did not mean to imply that Bellwether should only be about the Grand 
Connection. No matter how much or how little gets developed along the route, Bellwether 
should be a permanent, year-round amazing celebration. He said of the three proposed themes, 
he liked the International Street approach best given that it is about community and all of the 
different cultures coming together.  
 
Commissioner Gulati agreed and said the theme could bring in art in various forms and 
traditions.  
 
Chair Manfredi left the meeting and handed the gavel to Commissioner Malkin.  
 
Commissioner Lau Hui said it was important to her to continue pushing the envelope of the 
exhibition and keeping the momentum going. Whatever theme is chosen, the real focus should 
be on pushing the envelope. That should be the message to the curator.  
 
Mr. MacDonald said there is a question of brand. The current Bellwether involves the creation 
of a new brand, and what will bring people back every year is how they connect with the 
brand. That will not mean doing the same thing every year, rather it will involve building on 
experiences while also trying new things, all without taking an entirely new approach every 
year.  



 
Mr. Heim said one of the things that provides continuity in temporary art would be the 
assumption that all of the works would be contemporary art. One way the monuments theme 
could fit that assumption would be to have a highly conceptual avant garde performance artist 
do a historical reenactment. It could be funny and edgy and in line with all that is being done. 
The name Bellwether is tied to the notion of a sign of things to come, and simply taking the 
same approach every year may not in fact be a sign of things to come.  
 
Commissioner Gulati allowed that every year there should be evidence of growth and a notch 
up, but it should all be predicated on the same base idea of the Grand Connection.  
 
Commissioner Malkin said the model of having works commissioned for Bellwether, if 
continued, will mean the theme will be whatever the Commission decides. The question is 
whether or not Bellwether should be given a brand that is followed up on and highlighted 
every year, or whether each year the event should start from scratch with a new theme. Mr. 
MacDonald said that is the core question. The sculpture exhibition was pretty much the same 
for 26 years, with a very slow evolution toward a more contemporary focus. People did 
identify with that brand, but Bellwether will clearly evoke a different brand with the 
upcoming show. The opportunity is at hand to take the brand and make it about the future, 
about change, about exploring new ideas and art forms, and looking at things from different 
perspectives. The alternative is to create Bellwether 2.0 and do essentially the same thing for 
the next 26 years.  
 
Commissioner Malkin suggested the Commission would not want to see the latter occur. 
There should be some continuity, not a reinventing of the event every year. The Grand 
Connection will be the foundation for Bellwether for the next few years, largely because it 
will become where the art lives. That will allow for the underlying theme, the content, to be 
new each year without the creation of a new core.  
 
Mr. Heim said he was hearing from the Commission that the core was the place and the vision 
for the future, which will include a hundred different parts ranging from digital tech-drive art 
to cultural festivals and new monuments in the city’s cultural corridor. He suggested just 
taking one component every year and testing it.  
 
Commissioner Jackson asked Mr. Heim if he envisioned simply dropping a lot of the more 
general things. She pointed out that with the exception of the spoken and musical elements, 
BeresSuttenCuller are more generalists in terms of the visual arts. She asked if bringing on 
board a specialist curator will result in works that are all in line with that person’s specialty. 
Mr. Heim said he envisioned the decision making all done by the Arts Commission. The work 
of a curator is totally about making and relying on connections. The 54 artists that are signed 
up did not come on board because of any connection the Commission has with them, rather it 
was because of their connection to the curator team.  
 
Commissioner Lau Hui asked if BeresSuttonCullen could be contracted for another year. Mr. 
Heim said that could be done. Commissioner Lau Hui said the team clearly has a good 
understanding of what Bellwether is about and would be a good choice to carry the theme 
forward next year. Commissioner Gulati agreed and said she liked the idea for the consistency 
it would bring. Commissioner Lau Hui said after the second year under the new brand, it 
might be easier to hand it off to someone else.  
 
Commissioner Malkin said he was not sure the Commission was quite ready to make that 
decision. He said he liked the idea of a new curator coming in with a new vision, and the idea 
of thinking about and building on a base theme of inventing the future.  
 



Bellevue Arts Commission  
July 10, 2018 Page  7 

 

Answering a question asked by Mr. MacDonald, Mr. Heim said it would be possible to put out 
a request for proposals from curators. That would, however, defer the decision making to the 
curator. He said he would rather hear from the Arts Commission about what it wants to 
commission. Commissioner Malkin said the RFP would entail having curators start with and 
work with an agreed-to theme.  
 
Commissioner Jackson said her primary concern was the need to avoid throwing the baby out 
with the bathwater. There has been no determination by the Commission that the change is 
needed, so an approach that seeks a complete change every year should be avoided. The better 
approach would be to think about what has been successful and to build on that. Going from 
ten $3000 commissions to one $30,000 commission may not have the same outreach and 
popularity. Getting too didactic or too focused on one curator’s specialty may result in just 
that and have trigger the loss of the brand. One of Bellwether’s points of success has been that 
it involved an open call and a jury selection process. The Arts Commission has been involved 
in the scoping of the call, the theme and the presentations of the art works to the jury.  
 
Mr. Heim allowed that the Commission was clearly not ready to vote on anything regarding 
the 2019 Bellwether program. With the Commission not meeting again until September, any 
decision will be pushed back by two months. He said he would mull over the comments and 
work with Chair Manfredi in developing an approach.  
 
 C. Bel-Red Streetscape Planning Artist 
 
Mr. MacDonald reported that on July 9 the selection panel chaired by Commissioner Gulati 
met and interviewed four artists. The panel’s first ballot was unanimous for the selection of 
Jill Anholt. The panel liked the fact that Ms. Anholt demonstrated a strong ability to go from 
contemporary to permanent artworks, and how to be additive on top of a permanent work to 
allow for ongoing change. The panel believed Ms. Anholt understood the streetscape project 
better than the other applicants. All three of the projects she presented during her interview 
were planning projects that went on to a permanent art work within the broader planning 
project. Of all the finalists, the panel felt her art work was the most visually and conceptually 
beautiful.  
 
Mr. MacDonald said the first phase of the project has a budget of $20,000 for the planning 
work. As part of that element, the artist will develop three concepts for early implementation. 
The Commission will made the final decision as to whether or not to pursue any of the 
concepts. The second phase of the project will be paid for through the urban boulevards 
program, which makes the project unique.  
 
The Commissioners were shown the art works presented to the panel by the artist.  
 
Commissioner Lau Hui asked if the project budget was reasonable. Mr. MacDonald said the 
question came up at the panel as well. He said it must be assumed that artists know how to 
complete their work within the budget for any project for which they are applying. Project 
budgets are made clear as part of the application process.  
 
A motion to accept the panel’s recommendation of Jill Anholt to serve as the planning artist 
for the Bel-Red streetscape project was made by Commissioner Gulati. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Jackson and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
5. COMMISSION QUICK BUSINESS – None  
 
6. REPORTS 
 



 A. Commissioner’s Committee and Lead Reports – As Noted  
 
 B. Project Updates from Staff – As Noted 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE, INFORMATION 
 
 A. Written Correspondence – As Noted 
 
 B. Information – As Noted 
 
  i. Committees – As Noted 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Malkin adjourned the meeting at 6:44 p.m.  



Ac
tio

n 
&

 D
is

cu
ss

io
n



 
 

Tuesday, September 4, 2018 Bellevue Arts Commission 
Meeting:  4:30 pm Action and Discussion 

 
 

 
StART East Link Light Rail Art Presentation 
At today’s meeting Kurt Kiefer, Sound Transit Art Program Manager, will present updated art concept for 
the by the artist Paul Marioni for the East Link Light Rail project at Bellevue Downtown Station. The 
commission was originally offered to the artist team of Ball-Nogues. However, the concepts could not be 
accommodated due to technical difficulties and the commission has been offered to Marioni instead. 
Marioni has commissioned artwork at other sites in the Bellevue Downtown Station. The Arts Commission 
will be asked to provide feedback on the concept. 
 

Action and Discussion   



 
 

Tuesday, September 4, 2018 Bellevue Arts Commission 
Meeting:  4:30 pm Action and Discussion 

 
 
 
2018 Bellwether Program Update 
At today’s meeting, staff will provide a final update including the event schedule, new website 
(www.bellwetherartsweek.org), and resources for promoting the show which will be shared at the meeting. 
 
SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
Every Day, September 14-23 
Performances by Mandy Greer and Margie Livingston 
Various Locations 
 
Friday, September 14, 6–9pm* 
Opening Party 
Bellevue Arts Museum, 510 Bellevue Way NE 
 
Saturday, September 15, 5–9pm 
Performances in the Plaza 
Compass Plaza, NE 6th Street and 106th Avenue NE 
 
Saturday, September 15, 8pm* 
Performance: Guillermo Gómez-Peña, The Most (un) Documented Mexican Artist 
Bellevue Arts Museum, 510 Bellevue Way NE 
 
Sunday, September 16, 1–5pm 
Artist Workshop with Guillermo Gómez-Peña 
Bellevue Arts Museum, 510 Bellevue Way NE 
 
Saturday, September 22, 5-6pm* 
Poetry Reading 
Bellevue Arts Museum, 510 Bellevue Way NE 
 
Saturday, September 22, 5-6pm 
Music & Performance in the Park 
Bellevue Downtown Park, 10201 NE 4th St 
 
BELLWETHER IN THE NEWS 

Art Intervention! 
The City of Bellevue looks to a trio of unconventional Seattle artists to manifest a massive civic 
transformation. 
By Jonathan Zwickel, City Arts Magazine, August 29, 2018 
https://www.cityartsmagazine.com/art-intervention/?mc_cid=eb1da66b27&mc_eid=%5bUNIQID%5d 
 
Can this festival bring Bellevue the arts cred it craves? 
The revamped Bellwether event aims to prove the city is more than malls. 
By Brangien Davis, Crosscut August 30, 2018  
https://crosscut.com/2018/08/can-festival-bring-bellevue-arts-cred-it-craves?mc_cid=eb1da66b27&mc_eid=%5bUNIQID%5d 

Action and Discussion   

http://www.bellwetherartsweek.org/
https://maps.google.com/?q=510+Bellevue+Way+NE&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=510+Bellevue+Way+NE&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=510+Bellevue+Way+NE&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=510+Bellevue+Way+NE&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=10201+NE+4th+St&entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.cityartsmagazine.com/2018/08
https://www.cityartsmagazine.com/art-intervention/?mc_cid=eb1da66b27&mc_eid=%5bUNIQID%5d
https://crosscut.com/2018/08/can-festival-bring-bellevue-arts-cred-it-craves?mc_cid=eb1da66b27&mc_eid=%5bUNIQID%5d


 
 

Tuesday, September 4, 2018 Bellevue Arts Commission 
Meeting:  4:30 pm Action and Discussion 

 
 

 
King County 4Culture Cultural Health Study 
4Culture is undertaking an ambitious effort to study and report on the cultural health of King County. Right 
now, they are conducting a series of listening sessions in the largest cities of each of the county districts, 
including Bellevue (District 6). Arts Program staff are involved in the Bellevue Listening Effort and is 
working with 4Culture staff to identify a select number of community members to participate. The listening 
session has been scheduled for Tuesday, September 25th. Please see the attached Project Handbook for 
more information. 
 
4Culture Cultural Health Study - Bellevue Listening Session 
5:30-7:30pm, September 25 
Crossroads Community Center – Community Room 
16000 NE 10th St, Bellevue, WA 98008 
 

Action and Discussion   



 

King County Cultural Health Study 
DRAFT PROJECT HANDBOOK [6‐28‐2018] 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
I.   Summary      pg. 2 
II.   Overview      pg. 2 
III.   Goals        pg. 3 
IV.   Our Process      pg. 3 
V.   Assumptions      pg. 6 
VI.   Principles of Engagement  pg. 7 
VII.   Timeline      pg. 8 
VIII.  Talking Points     pg. 8 
 
 
 

 



I.   Summary (DRAFT) 
In	order	to	more	effectively	serve	as	the	cultural	funding	agency	for	King	County,	4Culture	
is	undertaking	a	study	of	the	cultural	health	of	the	region.	Through	this	study,	King	
County’s	cultural	ecosystem	will	be	illuminated,	allowing	for	more	informed	responses	to	
the	field	by	4Culture	and	other	cultural	funders.	We	envision	this	study	and	report	
fostering	a	greater	understanding	of	how	the	varied	facets	of	arts	and	culture	management,	
philanthropy,	and	production/appreciation	work	together,	and	how	these	relationships	can	
be	strengthened	for	the	benefit	of	all.		
	
The	study	process	will	be:		

 Step 1: generating City Profiles, began in fall 2017 
 Step 2: conducting community Listening Sessions, will begin in summer 2018 and run 

through spring 2019 
 Step 3: generating the Final Report, will run through spring/summer 2019 
 Step 4: disseminating the Final Report, is expected to be complete late summer 2019 

 
II.     Overview 
We recognize that we live in a thriving, growing region. Unprecedented change and rapid 
growth has prompted 4Culture to take on the duty of studying, assessing, and reporting on the 
cultural health of the county.  This work requires the diligent gathering and synthesizing of 
data, toward a thorough examination of the indicators and determinants of the region’s 
cultural health.  

The purpose of this study is to compile a resource for funders, cultural stakeholders, policy‐
makers, and cultural leaders to learn more about cultural health at the county and city level. 
Ideally, the information in this study will help these individuals and organizations better 
understand the cultural health of the county, and perhaps more importantly, strategically 
respond to the underlying conditions impacting King County’s cultural health. 
 
The first step in this study is the creation of profiles for each of the 39 incorporated cities in 
King County and the 5 unincorporated areas with active, established area or community 
councils. These city profiles will compile existing data (American Community Survey, Secretary 
of State, etc. See Appendix for complete list.) to paint a picture of the demographic make‐up; 
the economic health; the physical health of the population; and a snapshot of the level of 
existing cultural opportunities in each city. 
 
4Culture, in partnership with local cultural contacts such as the Local Arts Agency or City staff, 
will then host a listening session in each city to gather further information about the cultural 
health of each city. Standardized questions will identify levels/types of cultural activities, the 
level of access to these opportunities, and potential for growth and cultural evolution. The 
cultural health profiles and the listening session narratives will be compiled into a final study 
report that will be disseminated to cultural stakeholders throughout the county. The listening 
sessions are divided into three rounds, with a phase of evaluation after the first round. This 
review of our methods and processes will improve subsequent rounds of listening sessions. 



This is the first time 4Culture has embarked on a large‐scale assessment project. We see this as 
an opportunity to learn, making adjustments and improving our understanding as we gain 
knowledge and experience from this effort. We are especially interested in compiling the 
significant cultural planning work that has been accomplished and is underway in the region, in 
order to better understand the shared visions, common needs, and successful strategies that 
are in place. By compiling data relevant to the stories we know, we can test what we believe to 
be true about the cultural field, and the cultural health of King County. 
 
 
III.     Study Goals 
1) Engage in conversations and gather data that will empower 4Culture to speak and act with 

authority and confidence about the cultural health of King County. Hold a series of listening 

sessions with cultural leaders and practitioners throughout King County’s 39 incorporated 

cities and unincorporated King County. The sessions will identify: 

 How successfully residents can access arts and culture experiences in their city 

 The barriers that make it difficult to participate in arts and cultural activities in their city 

 The shared success stories that can built upon 

 The challenges that can be collectively addressed 
 
2) Provide 4Culture and our colleagues with a document that can support the creation of a 

compelling policy tool‐kit that helps inspire public, private, and corporate funders to 

identify a shared strategy for the cultural sector that would benefit the entire county, and 

that builds upon existing planning work.  

 

3) Provide 4Culture staff with the necessary information that it needs to evolve existing grant 

programs and programmatic initiatives toward more equitable and effective outcomes, 

allowing us to maximize our limited resources. 
 

 

IV.     Our Process 
Through the King County Cultural Health Study, 4Culture will embark on an 18‐month project to 
gather information related to the cultural health of King County. This will be done through the 
collection and compilation of existing data and collection of original data through a series of 
Listening Sessions held throughout the county. 
 
Pre‐Existing Data Collections (City Profiles) 
Using existing data (see Appendix), we will create population‐level snapshots of each King 
County city (“City Profiles”). These snapshots will paint a picture of the demographic make‐up 
of each city; the economic status of each city; the physical health of the population; and the 
level of existing arts/culture opportunities in each city. These city profiles will be divided in to 
three distinct categories: 
 



 City‐level Comparable/Verifiable Data 

Typically population‐level data that is available, and thus comparable, for all cities in the 

county. The data source will have collected statistically valid data on a particular 

element or variable for each of the 39 King County Cities.  For example, this would 

include demographic data from the American Community Service.  

 

 City‐level Verifiable Data 

Typically data gathered by city government (LAA) or arts/culture organizations within a 

city. This is city‐specific, and the source likely didn’t use the same data collection 

methodology for other regional cities.  
 

 Internal Data & Anecdotal Information Collection (Mind‐Meld Series) 

Information provided by 4Culture’s internal database and anecdotal information 

provided by staff during informal lunch‐time gatherings. Database information is limited 

to 2015‐2018, in the following categories: applicant organizations and individuals with 

notes as to who was funded or not, and funded projects/events.  

 
The gathering of data and information will continue through the duration of the Listening 
Sessions, to ensure the final report is a rich resource supporting a variety of uses. 
 
Outreach Strategy 
To inform the cultural community of King County about the Study throughout its process, 
4Culture will explain what we plan to do and why. We will welcome involvement through 
attending a Listening Session, responding to the online survey, and/or staying up‐to‐date on our 
progress. 
 
The Study will be promoted via 4Culture’s enews, facebook, and twitter; there will be modest 
boosting of posts to geographic areas as the Listening Sessions are scheduled. It is 
recommended each Listening Session has a corresponding facebook event with RSVP’s 
accepted via Eventbrite. Inviting the local cultural community for each city in King County, 
including elected officials and key stakeholders, is integrated into the regional team work plan. 
 
Listening Sessions 
A key part of the Final Report will be the data gathered through Listening Sessions held in the 
39 King County cities and five unincorporated areas. The Listening Sessions will be held in 3 
waves. The first wave will be the 9 largest cities (by population) in each of the 9 County Council 
Districts. The second wave of Listening Sessions will be the 9 smallest cities (by population) in 
each of the 9 KC Council Districts. Wave three will include the 21 remaining cities and 
unincorporated areas with active area and community councils.  

 The first step will be the creation of three regional groups, made of staff 
representatives from each 4Culture program areas, who will meet to discuss the 
particular elements and variables of the cities they have been assigned. They will want 



to review the city profiles, the information gathered from the internal 4Culture mind 
melds, the 2016 King County City Health Profile, and any other information they feel 
would help familiarize them with the cities in their group. The three regional groups will 
focus on the following cities: Shoreline, Seattle (approximately District 2), and Seattle 
(approximately District 4); Kent, Federal Way, and Burien; and Bellevue, Sammamish, 
and Maple Valley. 

 The regional group will then task 2 people from the group to lead a Listening Session in 
each of the three assigned cities. These 2‐person teams will reach out to any City 
personnel involved with promoting culture (Local Arts Agency (LAA) administrator, parks 
staff, etc.) to explain the project and invite their participation as a collaborator. This is 
an important part of the process, as it acknowledges existing cultural planning and 
activities happening at a city level and those responsible.  

 The team, with their City collaborator, will select a venue, a date, and a time for the 
Listening Session to occur.  

 They will then begin to brainstorm the composition of the group, which should 
represent the geographic, racial/ethnic, gender, profession, and socio‐economic status 
of the city. Each listening session will be unique in composition, while using the same 
framework of questions and activities described in section VII. Each 4Culture pair is 
empowered to create a Listening Session invitation list they feel will best speak to the 
cultural health, needs, opportunities, and challenges of that particular city.  

o LAAs, umbrella organizations, community partners, liaisons, and 
underrepresented voices are important to consider in constructing the listening 
session invites. Underrepresented voices can include people with disabilities, 
people with low‐incomes, the population in geographic areas or representative 
of cultures within county zip codes experiencing the most significant social 
inequities, residents in rural King County, or residents of Seattle neighborhoods 
traditionally under‐represented in cultural funding. 

 Attendees are welcome to bring a friend. 
 On the day of the Listening Session, two 4Culture staff members will serve as facilitators, A 

third staff member will serve as scribe. Food/drink will be provided by the 4Culture team.  

Follow‐Up to Listening Sessions 
The listening session team will review the raw notes, and include them in their thank you 
message to attendees and City staff. At the conclusion of Round 1, 4Culture will assess the 
process internally, with participating City staff, and a hired consultant who will help assess the 
effectiveness of the process and make recommendations on how it can be improved. The 
results of this assessment will identify potential improvements to subsequent round of 
Listening Sessions. 

Final Report 
Once all listening sessions and City Profiles are complete, the Project Team (perhaps with the 
addition of an evaluation consultant) would compile a report of its findings. This report is 
expected to include: 

 1pg executive summary 



 Methodology Section to include an articulation of the process we used to obtain results, 

including an historical analysis of similar studies and how this study adds to the field.  

 Findings Sections to include 

o 39 individual “City Assessments” and 5 unincorporated King County areas, that 

would include the City Profiles data,  short narratives based on the listening session 

feedback, and 2‐3 specific findings regarding the cultural health of each city.  

o A “County‐wide Assessment” section identifying common challenges and common 

successes across the cities, as well as describing the cultural funding ecosystem in 

King County.  

o 4‐5 Findings regarding the health of arts/culture across the county. 

The Project Team, with staff support, will disseminate the Final Report and Findings broadly to 
the field. This would include, but not be limited to King County Council, LAAs and other City 
staff active in the cultural sector, umbrella organizations, and a special gathering of public, 
private, and corporate funders. Results	will	also	be	posted	to	the	4Culture	website	and	
notifications	sent	through	our	enews. 
 
 
V.     Assumptions 
4Culture acknowledges this is an ambitious project in an arena 4Culture has not historically 
worked within. Therefore, it is important to acknowledge certain assumptions that will guide, 
shape, and potentially limit the study.  

1) 4Culture currently does not have the resources required to collect comprehensive original 
data from the arts/culture sector, but can instead collect pre‐gathered data about the 
arts/culture sector. 

 

2) This will be an assessment of the county’s cultural ecosystem, rather than an assessment of 

4Culture’s specific efforts/impacts throughout the county arts/culture ecosystem.  

 
3) For the purposes of feasible data collection, that is comparable in nature, we’ll have to 

collect data by cities. We have had numerous discussions about alternative geographic 
groupings (council districts, multiple city conglomerations, regions), but the working group 
believes a city‐by‐city assessment makes the best use of available data and resources. 

 

4) 4Culture will have to be comfortable with the following limitations: data gathered through 
this project will study the cultural ecosystem primarily through a cultural lens. We will do 
our best to include the voices of citizens, community leaders, and groups that might not be 
as closely affiliated to art/culture, but we acknowledge our organizational leaning. We 
believe Phase II of the Study (2020 or 2021) would allow 4Culture to gather additional data 
from a more representational sampling. 

 
 



VI.     Principles of Engagement   
4Culture acknowledges the rights and responsibilities it must balance through the research 
process. In an effort to transparently outline the research methodologies of this project and 
articulate the level of accountability the organization feels toward those individuals, 
institutions, and organization subject to this study; 4Culture and all project personnel will be 
guided by these basic principles of engagement. 
 
Engaging Diverse Voices 

 We will engage a broad range of voices and views throughout the project; 
 We will be responsive to the communities and individuals we hope to serve in the 

design and implementation of the program. 
 

Listening  
 We will listen deeply, without preconceived notions or bias;  
 We will encourage openness and expression of diverse views. 

Building Trust 
 We will acknowledge the cultural and ethical challenges raised by the long history of 

particular practices by cultural institutions, and will seek to understand the impact of 
that legacy within our own community; 

 We will create a safe space for dialogue both within the listening sessions, and in any 
follow‐up. 

 
Sharing what we learn 

 We will be transparent and open with information about our process, the overall Study, 
and what we’re learning; 

 We will record the sessions and share our findings with 4Culture Board, staff, and key 
stakeholders;   

 We will provide channels for anonymous feedback for those who want their comments 
to remain private. 
 

Demonstrating Stewardship 
 We will acknowledge that individuals participating in the Listening Sessions, are giving 

freely and generously of their time and talents; 
 We will steward time and resources with great care;  
 We will provide the individuals and communities with whom we work the right support, 

information and preparation to fulfill their responsibilities. 
 
Showing our Appreciation 

 We will provide small tokens of our appreciation whenever practical and possible. LAAs 
will be compensated with $250 each, participants will select their thank you gifts from 
among a Discover Day Pass, or gift card to local coffee shop. 

 
 



VII.  Project Timeline 
11/17 ‐ 05/18    Project development, city profile development 

05/18 ‐ 06/18    Compile regional teams, hold staff training session 

06/18 – 07/18   Schedule Listening Sessions 

07/18 ‐ 08/18    First wave of 9 Listening Sessions are held 

   08/18 – 09/18   Project Team assesses and updates Listening Session process 
09/18 ‐ 10/18    Second wave of 9 Listening Sessions are held  

11/18 ‐ 02/19    Final wave of remaining Listening Sessions are held 

02/19 ‐ 06/19    Data analysis, complete Final Report with findings 

06/19 ‐ 07/19    Final report disseminated broadly 

	
	
VIII.  Talking Points   
These are talking points you can use when discussing the study. 

1. 4Culture is engaging in conversations and gathering data that will empower us to speak 

and act with authority and confidence about the cultural health of King County. We will 

be working closely with our regional colleagues to ensure the Final Report of this study 

also has the capability of empowering them in similar ways. 

2. This study will result in a Final Report that, in part, presents a compelling policy tool‐kit 

to galvanize public, private, corporate, and individual funders toward a shared strategy 

for the cultural sector that benefits the entire county, and that builds upon existing 

planning work. 

3. This cultural health study is comprised of multiple steps and processes for gathering 

data and information. Each step is designed to include many perspectives, resulting in a 

comprehensive overview of the existing relationships that make up the cultural 

ecosystem in our region. 

 
	



 
 
Tuesday, September 4, 2018 

 
Bellevue Arts Commission 

  
 

 
1.   
 
2.  
 
3. 
 
 

 

Quick Business   



R
ep

or
ts



In
fo

rm
at

io
n



 
Tuesday September 4, 2018 Bellevue Arts Commission 
  

 

PROJECT UPDATES 
 
PUBLIC ART 
 
Bellwether 2018: Exhibition & Art Walk 
Update, September 4, 2018: An update will be provided at today’s meeting. 
 
East Link Public Art 
Update, September 4, 2018: An update will be provided at today’s meeting. 
 
Grand Connection 
Update, September 4, 2018: The design consultants, Balmori, will be in Bellevue on September 
10th and 11th to conduct stakeholder workshops to gather information for the development land-
use code amendments and design guidelines. An Arts and Culture Workshop is included and 
scheduled for Monday, September 10th, at 11am.  
 
Lattawood Park 
No updates to report. 
 
Meydenbauer Bay Waterfront Expansion 
No updates to report. 
 
130th Streetscape Public Art 
No updates to report. 
 
Downtown Park Public Art  
No updates to report. 
 
Portable Art Collection 
No updates to report. 
 
Public Art Collection & Maintenance 
No updates to report.   
 
Life Cycle Replacement: 
Update, September 4, 2018: The new artwork has been installed at Chism Beach Park. See picture 
on the following page.  

R e p o r t s   



 
 
OTHER PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 
 
4Culture Cultural Health Project 
Update, September 4, 2018: An update will be provided at today’s meeting. 
 
BelRed Streetscape Plan Update 
No updates to report. 
 
Artspace Affordable Housing Feasibility Study 
No updates to report. 
 
Bellevue Creative Edge 
No updates to report. 
 
Cultural Compass 
No updates to report. 
 
Funding, 2018 
No updates to report. 
 
Power Up Bellevue 
No updates to report. 
 


	03 2018-07-10 AC minutes.pdf
	Bellevue City Hall
	Room 1E -118

	05 action and discussion b 090418.pdf
	Art Intervention!
	The City of Bellevue looks to a trio of unconventional Seattle artists to manifest a massive civic transformation.



